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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Onancial statements of HT Mobile Solutions Limited (“the Company™), which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income). statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant acceunting
policies and other explanatory information.

I our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements, give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act™) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generalty
accepted in india, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our repert. We are independent ¢f
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the cthical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other cthical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibiiity is to read the other
information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knewledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. I based on the work we have performed, we conctude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information. we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 1o report in this regard.
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Management's and Board of Directors® Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Beard of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, prefit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generafly accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 135 of the Act. This responsibility
aiso includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other frregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate  internal  financial  controls that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and
compieteness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due o fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
t0 going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasenable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepiicism throughout the audit. We also:

s ldentity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting @ material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the override of
internal control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal controt relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3%1) of the Act. we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating ettectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasenableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures in the financial siatements made by the Management and Board of
Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the velated disclosures in the financial statements or. if such
disclosures are inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However. future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disciosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in
internal controf that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have comptied with refevant
ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all refationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear or our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

We draw your attention to the fact that corresponding figures for the vear ended 31 March 2019 are
based on previously issued financial statements of the Company that were audited by the predecessor
auditer who expressed an unmodified opinion en those financial statements dated 8 May 2019

Our opinion on the financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matter,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (i1) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A™ a statement on
the matters specified i paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Qrder, to the extent applicable.

2. {A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that

a) We have sought and obtained ali the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and betief were necessary for the purpeses of our audit.
g b purp

b} In our epinion, proper beoks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statemenis comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2020 from being appeinted as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
scparate Report in "Annexure B™.

{B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors” Report in accordance with Rule
L1 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations as ar 31 March 2020 which would
impact its financial position:

—
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

i, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company,

v, The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 10 30 December 2016 have
not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financiat year
ended 31 March 2020.

{C) With respect to the matler to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16}):

In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, there are no directors o
whom remuneration is paid / payable in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The
Ministry of Carporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required
to be commented upon by us.

For B S R and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 128901W

N

Rajesh Arora

Place: Gurugram Partner
Brate: 25 june 2020 Membership No.: 076124

UDIN: 20076 124 AAAABGQ2879
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Annexure A referred to in our {ndependent Auditor’s Report to the members of HT Mobile
Solutions Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

(1) {a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by
which all fixed assets are veritied in a phased manner over a period of three years, In our
opinton:-this periodicity of physical: verification by management is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this
programme. certain fixed assets were physically verified during the year. As informed to
us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company dees not have
_any immovable properties. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(<) of the Order is not applicable.

{i1) The -Company. is in the business of rendering services and does not hold inventory.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(1) According to the information and expianations given to us, the Company has not granted
any foan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited Hability partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii} of the Order is not applicable.

{iv) According to the information and explanations given to uws and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no loans given or investiments made
by the Company which are not in compliance with Section {85 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013. There are no guarantees given or securities provided by the Company as
specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act. 2013.

{(v) As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits as mentioned in the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules framed there under. Accerdingly, paragraph 3{v) of the Order is not
applicable.

{(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has
not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013, for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(vi} of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (8} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company. amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income tax,
goods and services tax, duty of customs. cess. professional tax and other statutory dues
have been reguiarly deposited during the vear by the Company with the appropriate
authorities. As explained to us, the Company did aot have any dues on account of sales
tax, service tax, employees’ state insurance, duty of excise and value added taxes,

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts pavable
in respect of provident fund, income tax. goods and services tax. duty of customs, cess,
professional tax and other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period
of more than six months from the date thev became payable.

{(b) According to the information and explanations given to us. there are no dues of income tax.
scrvice tax, goods and services tax, sales tax. value added tax and duty of customs which
have not been deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute as at 31 March 2020
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(vitt) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company. the Company has not taken any loans or
berrowings frem financial institutions, banks and government and has not issued any
debentures. Accordingly. paragraph 3 (viil) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) The Company has net raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) and terms loans during the vear.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{x} . According 10 the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by
the Company or on the Company by 1ts officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

(xi) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no directors to whom
remuneration is paid / payabie in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
nidhi company. Accordingly. paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable,

(xiii) In our epinion and according to the irformation and explanations given to us and
on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and [88 of the
Companies Act, 2013, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the current year. Accordingly. paragraph 3(xiv) of
the Order is not applicable.

(xv) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered inte any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
them. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xv) of the Order is not applicable.

{xvi})  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

For B S R and Associates
Chartered Accouniants
Firm's Registration No.: 128901W

\p’%
Rajesh Arora
Place: Gurugram Partner
Date: 23 June 2020 Membership No.: 076124
UDIN: 20076124 AAAABQ2879
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Annexure B fo the Independent Auditor’s report on the financial statements of HT Mohile
Solations Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements
under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 43 of the Companies Act, 2013

{Retferred to in paragraph 1(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legai and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of HT Mobile
Solutions Limited (“the Companv™) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate interna! financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2020, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsibie for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference te financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These respensibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business. including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act™).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinien on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143{10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
pertorm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
mternal financial controls with reference to financial statements inctuded obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
nrocedures selected depend an the auditor’s judgement. including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the tinancial statements. whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accerdance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2} provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of fipancial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition.
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material etfect on the financial statements.

Intherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of coliusion or mproper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not he detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

For B S R and Associates
Chartered Acconuntants
Firm's Registration No.: 128901 W

s

Rajesh Arora

Place: Gurugram Partner
Date: 25 fune 2020 Membership Ne.: 076124
UDIN: 20076124 AAAABQ2879



HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Baiance sheet as at March 31, 2020

Notes As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs. in '000) {Rs. in '000)
I ASSETS
1) Non-current assets
(a} Property, plant and equipment 3 469 722
{b} Intangible assets 4 299 548
{c) Financial assets
(i} Investments 5A 6,000 -
{d) Deferred tax assets (net) 15 50,141 57,093
(&) Income tax assets (Net) 6 44,544 41,282
Total non- current assets 101,453 29,645
2) Current assets
{a) Financial assets
(Y Trade receivabies 7A 4,423 110,189
(ii)Cash and cash equivalents 7B 23,333 57,012
(iliY8ank balances other than (ii) above 8 - 22,500
(iviioans 58 30,150 150
{v)Other financial assets 5C 44,129 20,077
{b} Other current assets 9 119,969 77,337
Total current assets 222,004 287,265
TOTAL ASSETS 323,457 386,910
11 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 10 354,586 354,586
{b) Other equity il (153,341) {168 215)
Total equity . 201,245 186,371
Z} Liabilities
Naon-current liadilities
{a) Provisions 13 472 298
Total Mon-current liabilities 472 298
Current liabilities
{a} Financial tiabitities
(i) Trade payables
a) Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and 124 - 137
small enterprises
b) Tetal cutstanding dues of creditors other than 12A 111,035 196,583
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(if) Other financial liabitities 128 8,141 1,246
(b} Provisions 13 96 B6
{c) Other current liabilities 14 2,468 2,189
Total current liabilities 121,749 200,241
Total liabilities 122,212 200,539
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 323,457 386,910
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

See accompanying notes te the financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date attached

For B $ R and Associates
Chartered Accountants
(ICAI Firm registration Number: 128901W)

N

Rajesh Arora
Partner
Membership No. 076124

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
HT Mobile Scolutions Limited

Umesh Sharma
Director
(DIN: 01490553}

3

Rahul Garg
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram Place: New Delhi
Date: June 25, 2020 Date: June 25, 2020




HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars Nates Year ended Year endetd
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
{Rs. in '000) {Rs. in '000}
1 Income
a) Revenue from operations 16 227,548 181,274
b) Other Income 17 7,139 8,490
Total Income 234,687 189 764
II Expenses
a) Employee benefits expense 18 8,914 9,825
b} Finance costs 19 125 53
¢} Depreciation and amortization expense 20 346 1,472
d} Other expenses 21 203421 153,496
Total expenses 212,806 164,846
I Profit before tax (I-11) 21,881 24,9138|
IV Earnings before finance cost, tax, depreciation and amortization 22,352 26,442
{EBITDA) [III+II{h)+1I{c)]
V Tax expense:
{1} Current tax 15 - -
{2) Deferred tax charge/{credit) 15 6,556 {57,093)
[Adiustment of deferred charge/(credit) tax related to earlier years of INR
1,017 thousands {Previcus Year-Nil}}
Total tax expense 5,960 {57,083)
VI Profit for the year (III-V) 14,915 82,011
VIl QTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not to be reclassified subsequent| rofit or 10ss
~ Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 22 (55) 204
- Income tax effect 14 -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (41) 204
VIII Total Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax (VI+VII) 14,874 82,215
IX Earnings per equity share
Basic {Neminal value of shares Rs. 16/-) 23 0.42 2.31
Ciluted {Nominal value of shares Rs. 10/-} 23 0.42 2.31
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date attached

For B S R and Associates

Chartered Accountants
(ICAI Firm registration Number: 128%01W)

>

For.and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Rajesh Arora
Partner
Membership No. 076124

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 25, 2020

Zpirus Master
ief Executive Officer

' Place: New Delhi
Date: June 25, 2020

HY Mobile Solutions Limited

Umesh Sharma
Director
(DIN: 01490553}

B

Rahul Gar

Chief Financi fficer




[HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2020
{Rs, in '000)

Year ended
March 31, 2019
{Rs. int "000)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization

Loss/{gain} on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest income from investments and others

toss on account of fair value of investments classified at FVTPL
Unclaimed balances/liabilities written back

Net impairment loss/{gain) on financial assats

and liabilities

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease in trade receivables

current assers

non-current liabilities and provisions

Total cash from operations

(Income taxes paid)/refund

inet cash flows from operating activities {A}

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of investments

Inter corporate depaosits given

Interest received on inter carporate deposit given

Interest received con deposits

Net cash flows {(used in)/genrated from investing activities (B}

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net cash flows from/{used in) financing activities (C )

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (D= A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (E}

Cash and cash equivalents at year end (D+E)

Cash flows from operating activities before changes in following assets

(Increase) in current and non-current financial assets and other current and non-

(Decrease) in current and nen-current financial liabilities and other current and

21,881 24,918
346 1,472
133 {2)
(2,684} (2,157)
1,000 -
(4,042) {1,700}
534 (475}
17,168 22,056
105,232 29,837
(44,305) (38,156)
{74,337} (41,785)
3,758 (28,048)
(3,262} 38,964
496 10,916
21 44
{7,000) -
(30,000} -
23 -
2,781 1,826
{34,175) 1,870
{33,679) 12,786
57,012 44,226
23,333 57,012

Particulars March 3%, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs. in '000) (Rs. in '000)

Component of cash and cash equivalent as at end of the year

Balances with banks

- on current accounts 833 1z

- on deposit accounts 22,500 57,000

Total Cash and cash eauivalents 23,333 57,012

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date attached

For B S5 R and Assaciates
Chartered Accountants
(ICAI Firm registration Number: 128901W)

\_9@

Rajesh Arora
Partner
Membership No. 076124

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 25, 2020

S
recto

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
HT Mobiie Solutions Limited

upta

IN: 033§5591)

Zaigus Master
ief Executive Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: Jupne 25, 2020

Umesh Sharma

Director
{DIN: 014




HY Mobile Solutions Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL {Refer Note 10)

Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Particulars- ORI

Balance ag at April 1, 20
Change dtising the year .
Balance as at March 31, 2019
Change during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2020

. OTHER EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS {Refer Note 11}

Balance as at April 1, 2018
Change during the year . .
Forfelture of outstanding share based optlon . .
Iterns of gain of other comprehensive come recognised directy in
retained earninas

- Remeasurements of defined banefits oblfgation, net of tax

Balance as at March 31, 2019

Change during the year X

Tterns of gain of ¢ther comprahansive Income recognised directly In
retained eaminas

- Remeasurements of defined benefits obliqation, net of tax

Balance as at March 31, 2020

See accompanying notes to the financial statements,
In terms of our report of even date attached
Far B 5 R and Associates

Chartered Actountants
(ICAI Flrm registration Number: 128901W}

Partner
Membership No, 076124

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 25, 2020

Equity share Capital’

'660)

v Mumber: o (RS,
38,458,558 354,586
35,458,598 354,586
35,456,598 354,586

: Reserve & Sueplus::: ;' Share based: . Capital Reserve
v Retained payment resecve 1 SE
arnings/. Generdl . 2

L Réserve

- 82,011

- 65 - -

- 204 . - - 204
23,911 {190,883) - {1,243) (168,215)

- 14,915 - - 14,915

. {41} - - (41)
23,911 (176,009} - (1,243) (153,341)

d on behalf of the Soard of Directors of HT Mobile Sokutions Limited

Umesh Sharma
Directar x
{DIN: D149055%9)

Rahul‘Garg
Chief Financial Q

ace: New Delhi
bate; June 25, 2020




HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for year ended 31 March 2020

1. Corporate information

HT Mobile Solutions Limited ("The Company”} is a public company domicifed in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India having
investment through HT Digital Media Holdings limited to carry out mobile marketing, social
media marketing, advertising, mobile CRM and loyalty campaigns, mobile music content and
ring tones and integrates with other media campaigns and strategies.

The registered office of the Company is located at Hindustan Times House, 18-20, Kasturba
Gandhi Marg, New Delhi-110001.

Information on other related party relationships of the Company is provided in Note 26.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2020 were
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on lune 25,
2020.

2. Significant accounting policies followed by the company

2.1Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Campany have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended). For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31,
2016, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with Accounting
Standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP}.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial
statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

« Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;
« Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments),

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. Al amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been
rounded off to the nearest thousands as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless
otherwise stated. .

2.2Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Current versus non- current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-

current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

»  Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

s Held primarily for the purpose of trading

+ Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

s Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting petiod.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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A liability is current when:

e It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

s It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

« It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
maonths after the reporting period :

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the display of advertisement on website and
delivery of content and their realization in cash and cash equivalent. The Company has
identified 12 manths as its operating cycle.

b) Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective
functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.
However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the
Company’s monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initialty
recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as
income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

c) Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments such as, derivatives and certain
investments at fair value at each reporting/ balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

« Llevel 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which inputs are inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly

» level 3 — Valuation technigues for which inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liabiity

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

d) Revenue recognition

Fffective April 1, 2018 the Company has adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” using the cumulative catch-up up transition method which is applied to
contracts that were not completed as of April 1, 2018.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment
is being made. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the
consideration, adjusted for allowances, trade discounts, volume rebates, if any, as specified
in the contract with the customer. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers. The
Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is
the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also
exposed to.inventory and credit risks.

Goods and Service tax / Service tax is not received by the Company on its own account.
Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Contract asset and unbilled receivables

Contract asset represents the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for services that
the Company has transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on socmething ather
than the passage of time.

When there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required to do
invoicing, the same is presented as unbilled receivable.

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is
earlier) from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services,
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenve when the Company performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).
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The specific recognition criteria described kelow must also be met before revenue is
recognised. )

Revenue from services
Revenue from services is recognised basis music and video content monetised during the
month through various publishers (websites).

Revenue from SMS pushes/voice calls
Revenue is recognised after the delivery of SMS pushes/voice calls.

Revenue from Content
Revenue is recognised basis of log records of operators.

Revenue from Digital Services/Social Media
Revenue from social media is recognised based on actual output delivered in a month to the
client as per the terms of the RO/email from client/agreement.

Interest income

interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future c&sh payments or receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amoun*t of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability, When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.
Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

e) Taxes

Current income tax

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the
period in respect of current tax and deferred tax,

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting
date. :

Current Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations 1in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes dealing with accounting for uncertainty over income
tax treatments is applicable from accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019, It
does not have any materiai impact on financial statements of the Company.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided considering temparary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except:
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*» When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

» In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlied and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible tempaorary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

s When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if it has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

GST / value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax / value added taxes/
goods and service tax paid, except:

« When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

* When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as
part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the tost of replacing part of the
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plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met.

Cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing costs (if any) if capitalization criteria are met
and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price.

Recognition:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and
only if:
a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
entity;
and
b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

All other expenses on existing assets, including day-to day- repairs and maintenance
expenditure and cost of replacing arts, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for
the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a Straight Line Method over
its economic useful lives of the assets as follows:

Useful lives estimated by

Type of asset management (Years)

General plant and machinery 3-6
Furniture and fixtures 2-10
Leasehold improvements amortized over the lease period

The Company, based on technical assessment made by the management depreciates
certain plant and machinery over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful
life prescribed in Schedule i to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that
these estimated usefu! lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over
which the assets are likely to be used.

Property, Plant and Equipment which are added/disposed off during the year, depreciation is
provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition/deletion.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
incduded in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Subsequent expenditure can be capitalised only if it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the company.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate. h

g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
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intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure Is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite,

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognized in the Stetement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment
of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on straight line basis using the estimated
life as follows:

Intangible Assets Useful Life {(in Years)

Software Licenses 6

Non- compete fees Amortized over the agreement
period

h} Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a
provision ta be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks spedcific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as a finance cost,

i} Impairment of hon-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
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other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered irnpaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation madel is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded Company’s or other available fair
value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast
calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the
individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a
period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to
project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond
periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow
projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years,
unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the
leng-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country ar countries in which
the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss untess the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation
Increase,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at the CGU
level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired.

j)} Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and defined contribution plans:

Ali employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short-term emplayee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc.
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee
renders the related service.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense,
when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for
service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the
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deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution
already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent
that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash
refund.

Gratuity

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined
benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiting,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
» The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
» The date that the Company recognises related restructuring cost

Net interest is caiculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit Hability or
asset. '

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an

expense in the Statement of profit and loss:

» Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtaifments and non-routine settlements; and

+ Net interest expense or income

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the company before the
normal retirement date. The Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the
following dates: (a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits;
and (b) when the Company recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of Ind
AS 37 and involves the payment of terminations benefits. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.

Compensated Absences

Accumulated leave, which is expécted to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as
short term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as
the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitiement that has
accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
setttement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional legal
and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non- current liability.
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k) Financial instrumenis

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets (Other than trade receivable which is recognised at transaction price as per
ind AS 115) are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost.

A 'debt instrument® is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

« The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and

s Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to
trade and other receivables.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance
sheet) when:

¢ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

+ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered Into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also racognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g. foans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind-AS 115 (referred to as ‘contractual
revenue receivables' in these financial statements).

The Company follows ‘simplified approach® for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
« Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables;

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
resuits from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date,

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on portfolic of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for
forward-looking estimates. At every repcrting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed,

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head
‘other expenses' in the Profit and Loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
EEnstrurnerats is described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of
those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the
asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the
gross carrying amount. For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company
combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk
to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired {POCI) financial
assets, i.e,, financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair vaiue
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities
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are recognised initially at fair value ard, in the case of and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities mainly include trade and other payables.
Subseqguent measurement

Trade and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net bhasis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

1) Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset
for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset
measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability adjusted for any iease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
tease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs 1o be
incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the
underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently
measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any
and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of
lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets
are deterniined on the same basis as those of property, plant and egquipment. Right-of-use
assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable, Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. The lease
payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees,
exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
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option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed iease payments.
The Company recegnises the amount of the re-measurement of jease liability due to
modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss
depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease
liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement
of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term leases
of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying
asset is of low value, The {ease payments associated with these leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a practical expedient a lessee {the company) has elected, by class of underlying asset, not
to separate lease components from any associated non-lease components. A lessee {the
company) accounts for the lease component and the associated non-lease components as a
single lease component,

m ] r

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease. The Company recognises lease payments received under operating
leases as income on a straight- line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease,
finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant
periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease.

Transition to Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment
Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17
leases and other interpretations. ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It
introduces a singie, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees,

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting peried beginning April 1,
2019 and applied the standard to its leases, retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of
initially applying the Standard, recognised on the date of initial application {April 1, 2019).
Accordingly, the Company has not restated comparative information. As on April 1, 2019, the
Company has recognized a right of use asset at an amount equivalent to the lease liability
and consequently there is no adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as on
April 1, 2019, On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has changed from lease
rent in previous periods to depreciation cost for the right-to-use asset, and finance cost for
interest accrued on lease liability.

Identification of lease:

» The Company has reassessed whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at the date of
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initial application.
Leases previously classified as operating leases:

« The Company has recognised a lease liability at the date of initial application for leases
previously classified as an operating lease applying Ind AS 17 (other than those which
does not satisfy the lease definition criteria under Ind AS 116). The Company has
measured lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

s The Company has recognised a right-of-use asset at the date of initial application for
leases previously classified as an operating lease applying Ind AS 17 (other than those
which does not satisfy the lease definition criteria under Ind AS 116). The Company has
opted to measure right-of-use asset at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in
the balance sheet immediately before the date of initial application.

» The Company has relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous applying Ind AS
37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, immediately before the date
of initial application as an alternative to performing an impairment review.

« The Company has opted not to apply the above transition requirements to leases for
which the lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial application.

Leases previously classified as finance leases:

» For leases that were classified as finance leases applying Ind AS 17, the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset and the lease liability at the date of initial application
is the carrying amount of the lease asset and [ease liability immediately before that
date measured applying Ind AS 17.

There is no impact on transition as ofr 1 April 2019.

m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent consists of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

n} Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss.
The company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ {loss) from continuing operations. In its
measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance
costs and tax expense,

o) Contingent Liabilities

A contingent lability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
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beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because itis
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability
but discloses its existence in the financial statements. Contingent assets are only disclosed
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity.

p) Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing:

-the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

-by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares. :

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

- The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with  dilutive
potential equity shares, and

- The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

q) Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the
grant is made using an appropriate valuation model. The Company has availed option under
Ind-AS 101, to apply intrinsic value method to the options already vested before the date of
transition and applied Ind-AS 102 Share-based payment to equity instruments that remain
unvested as of transition date.

That cost is recoghised, together with a norresoonding increase in share-based payment (SBP)
reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting pericd has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The Staterment of Profit and Loss expense or credit for a
period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining
the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed
as part of the Company's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value.
Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value
of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service
and/or performance conditions. .

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards incude a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the
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market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied. .

When the terms of an equity-settied award arz modified, the minimum expense recognised is
the expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met.
An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured
at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty,
any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit
or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted earnings per share.

2.3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in cutcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgment are as below:

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in
tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of
business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual
agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or
future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income
and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable
estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of
previous tax assessments and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable
entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a
wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of
the Companies.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 15,
Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.
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The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit
obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly avaiiable mortality tables for the specific countries.
Those mortality tables tend to change oniy at interval in response to demographic changes.
Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for
the resnective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 24.
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement
is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments. For more information refer Note 25.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Company. uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of Non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. It is determined for an individual asset, uniess the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent markets transactions are taken into
account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate vatuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators,
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Note 3 : Property, plant and equipment

{Rs. in '000)

= Particulars:

- Plantand: > Furniture and. ... .. Total ...
machinery fixtures -

—

As at April 1, 2018 472 13,452 17 13,941
Additions during the vear - - - -
Less : Disposals/ adijustments - 234 - 234
As at March 31, 2019 472 13,218 17 13,707
As at April 1, 2019 472 13,218 17 13,707
Additions during the yvear - - - -
Less : Disposals/ adjustments - 3,560 - 3,560
As at March 31, 2020 472 9,658 17 10,147
Accumuiated Depreaciation/

Impairment

As at April 1, 2018 449 11,540 6 11,995
Charge for the year 4 1,176 2 1,182
Less : Disposals/ adjustments - 192 - 192
As at March 31, 2019 453 12,524 8 12,985
As at April 1, 2019 453 12,524 8 12,985
Charge for the year 4 92 2 97
Less : Disposals/ adjustments 3,405 3,405
As at March 31, 2020 457 9,211 10 9,678
Net Block o

As at March 31, 2020 15 447 7 469

As at March 31, 2019 o .19 694 9 722
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Note 4 : Intangible assets
{Rs. in '000)

Gross carrying amount
As at April 1, 2018 11,430 1,391 12,821
Additions during the year - - -
Less : Disposals/ adjustments - - -
As at March 31, 2019 11,430 1,391 12,821

As at April 1, 2019 11,430 1,391 12,821
Additions durirg the year T~ - -
Less ; Disposals/ adjustments - - -

As at March 31, 2020 11,430 1,391 12,821

Accumulated Amortization/

Impairment

As at April 1, 2018 10,596 1,387 11,983
Charge for the year 290 - 290
As at March 31, 2019 10,886 1,387 12,273
As at April 1, 2019 10,886 1,387 12,273
Charge for the year 249 - 249
As at March 31, 2020 11,135 1,387 12,522
Net carrving amoung

As at March 31, 2020 T+ 205 4 299
As at March 31, 2019 1. 544 4 548
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Note 5A 1 Investments . A . {Rs. in 000)

5 March 31, 2020

arch 31, 2019

Investments at fair value through profi.t and loss

Unquoted Lo . .
Investmant tn equity lnstmments and warrants {refer note 25) . . 6000 .. N
Total investments: L : : : SO LS00 L s
Current: e

Non - currén

Note 5B :Loans

{Rs. in ‘000}
Particulars L

G AS T
*March 31, 2019

A RETY
~ March 33, 20207

-Unsecured consldered wuud at amomsed cost

Inter- corporate loan given {refer note 26A) {also refer nate 32)
Security deposit
Total Loans .

150
150
150

Parﬂculars Frinil A b
B : E s B R . 3 : LR Mareh 31 20190
Secured, cnnsl(fered good . o . - -
Unsecured, cansidered good o i . 30,150 150
Total . VL PR : : Lol T . 30,150 . . 150
Note 5C ¢ Other financial assets . B N . . {Rs. in '000)
particulars: { R P et e . . : . As ot . . Agat.

“ March 3%, 2020

S R R § ; “March 31, 261
Other financial assets (at amortised cost}
Interest accrued on fixed deposits X . - EEH
Interest accrued an inter-company deposits {refer note 26A)
JUnblited revenue

jOther receivables from related party {refer note 26A)
Total mher ncial Assats
Curent.
Non '« Current :

Note & ;: Income tax assets (net)
Particulari: "

Inmme tax assets (net) Trelaled te currant tax]
Cutrent: ;i
Non«c:.u-rent

Mote 7A ¢ Trade R
Partlcufarl ;

G As Ak
: ‘March 31, 2020
Trade recelvables

Rergivables from related Dartres {refer note 26A}
Total trade réceiva

+ 110,189

Curient’.: 110,189
Nait = Crirrent. e

{fs. in '000)
?aﬂi' !ar's_ Asat.::’

 Mich 31, 2016

Secured considered good -
110,189

Unsecured, considered good .

Unsecured, considered doubtful 9,092

Total ) 119,281

Loss allowance for bad & doubtful debts 2,082

Total trade receivables 119,189

No trade receivable i due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or Jointly with any other person.

Note 7B : Cash and cash equwalents (Rs. inn '0COY

Partlcu!ar’s - sl As Ak ; R P Ag aty i
March 31, 20200 March 3120197

ith banks :

Balance .

- On current accounts X L . 833 12

- Depasit with eriginal maturity of three months or less | X ’ . 22,500 57,000
Fotal 23,333 57012

Short-term deposits are made far varying periods of between one day and three menths, desending on the Immediate cash requirements of the Company and earn
interast ab the respective short-term deposit rates,

Note 8 : Other Bank balances {Rs. in 'unn)
Particula i g G A bl : s A Ak
: March 31, 2020

arch 31; 2015

Bank balances other than (7B) above
- Deposits with onginal maturity of more than three months but less than 12 months - 22,500
Yotal ’ ’ - 22,500
Nate 9 : Other current assets X (Rs. in* UUO)
Parljculars B : B Lo LA et R AR U R.1 35
20 Mayeh 31, 2020 S Mareh 31 2019
Advances to vendnrs (Encludes Rs Rl {PY Rs 576 tﬁousand) advance given to related pames) (refer note 33,617 18,054
26A)
Balance with statutory/government authorities 86,352 59,283
[tatal s wrins 7 R ET Y EET MR i B L B RS Pk g
Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Rs, in '000}
Particulars: : Ag Aty
: : : : ] SR A : March31.2019
Trade receivables (Note 74) . . 4,423 110,189
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 78} . . L 23,333 57,012
jOther bank balances (Note B) . . . - 22,560
Loans (Note SBY X . . . 30,150 150
jOther financial assets {Note 5C) X 44,129 20,077

[ Total financial assety carried at amortised cost X X X 102,035 209,928|
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Naota 10t Share capital
Avthorised share capital

Equity share capital

Tarms/ rights attached to equity shares

Notas to financtal statemants for the year anded March 31, 2020

Particulare .- . No.of shares .. (Rs. in '000}
AL April 1, 2085 ) ) 41,000,000 410,000
Increase/(decrease) during the yaar - -

At Harch 31, & ] . 431,000,000 410,000
Increasef{decrease) during the yaar - -
At March 31, 2020 ) 41,000,000 414,000

The Company has only one tlass of equity share having par value of Rs.10 each per share, Fach hofder of equlty share [s entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indlan
rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors 5 subject to the approvai of the shareholders In the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the avent of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entltfed to recaiva remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will ba in

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

(B) Instruments antlraly squity in nature

Particutars -

Optionatly Canvartibla Cumutative Preference Sharas (OCLPS) of Rs. 0,10 each

Raconciliation of the aquity sharas outstanding at tha beginning and at tha and of the year :

N Mareh 31, 2020

Particutars No. of sharas {Rs, In '000)
At AprH &, 2018 £0,000,0G0 5,000
Increase/(dacrease) during the year - -

At March 31, 2019 £0,000,000 5,080
Increase/{decrease) during the year - -
At March 21, 2020 50,000,000 5,000
1ssucd and subscribed capitat

Equity shares capital

E4ulty shares of Re; 10 asch [ssuad, Subs-iibad & Ailly pasd - Mo, of shares (i I '000)
Palance as at April 1, 2038 35,458,533 354,586
Changes durtng thé year = -
Balance as at March 31, 201$% 35458,598 354,586
Changes durdng the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 35,458,598 254,588

Ma_rch 31, 2019

i hmou_ﬁ!-
Shares outstanding at the begining of o i B ST (RS e DAY (Rs: 17 "600)
Shares outstanding at the beqinning of the year 35,458,598 354,586 325,458,593 354,586
Equity shares issued during the year - . - -
Sharaes outstanding at the and of the year 35,45E,598 354,586 35,458,598 354,586




HY Mobile Solutions Limited
Metos to flnancial stataments for the year ended March 31, 2020

Sharex held by holding/ ultimate holding Cempany and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates
Cut of equity and preference shares issued by the Company, shares hald by Its helding Cempany, uitimate holding Company and their subsidiaries/ associates are as below:

[Particalars

niie FE-Mar-20 o 3i-Mar-19
Lt N LA : {Re In "000) - (RE: In '000)
[Equity Shares of RS, 10 each of fully paids
HT Digital Madta Holdings Limited 321,712 3RL112
# 32,171,158 {March 31,2019 - # 32,171,157) squity shares of Rs. 10 aach fully paid .
HT Medla Limited, Hulding Company of HT Digltal Madia Holdings Umited
# 2,990,653 \March 35,2019 - # 2,990,653} equity shares of Rs. 10 aach fully pald . . 29,507 29,907

Datails of sharehaidars halding mara than 5% sharas in the Company

s hosdlng'ln

HENREN [N *'class
Equity Shares with voting X R

HT Digital Media Hofdings Umited L X 32,171,158 90.73% 32,171,157 90.73%)
# 32,171,158 {March 31,2019 - # 32,171, 157) aquity shares of e, 10 each fully paid ) . .

HT Medla Limited, Ultimate Holding Ccmparw X . . 2,990,651 5.43% 2,990,653 8.43%

# 2,990,653 (March 31,2018 - ¥ 2,990,653} equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully pald

[As per racords of the Company, Induding its register of shareholders/members and other decfaration received from the shareholders regarding benefical Interest, the above shareholding rapresents both fegal
and beneficial ownerships of shares,

number of equlty shares issued as banus, shares issued for consideration ather than ~ash and shares bougnt back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting
date:

Particulal !'I

i 3R-Mar-39 A1-Mar-1%
. e R SR gttt : i R ST N of shires ™. No. of shares
197,850 mumber of equity shares and 98,526 number of eaquity shares with veting rights ware allotted durlng year ended March 31, 2014 206,776 256,776
and year ended March 31, 2015 respectively as fuily pald-up pursuant to contracts for cansideration other than cash ' '
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Note 11 1 Other squity

Seturities pramium
Capital resarve
Retained eamings & ganeral raserves ) {176,009}
Share based payment reserve : )

totalb:: e

jSecurities premiem
Partic X
At April 1, 2018
Changes during the year

At March 31, 2019 . . 23,911
Changes during the year | ) -
At March 31, 2020 ; o C 23,911

Retained earnings £ gonerak regervas

Purticidars - 3 : EUEERET Retalnad aarnings
At April 1, 2018 . ) {272,784}
Net Profit for the year . . T 82,011
Forfeiture of outstanding share based options ) : o £52
tems of galn of other comprehensive income racogmsed directly ins retelned sarmings
+ Remeasurements of defined banefits obligation, net of tax 204
At March 31, 2019 {150,217}
Net Profit for the year 14,91%
ltems of gain of other comprehensive income recognlsed diractly in retained 'aamings_ .
- Remeasuremants of defined benefits obhgation, nat of tax {41}
At March 31, 2029 {176,043}

Share based paymaent rasarve

Particufars: .. olo o T ERIERANS RSt GRS (Rs. In ‘D00
At April 1, 2018 G52
Forfeitura of outstanding shara hased options {852}
At 31 March 2019 ) -
[Changes during tha year .
At 31 March 2020 . . DR .

Capitat reserva®

Partiutars L0 L i PRI Yaind (Re I tDOBY
at April 1, 2018 (5,243)
Changes during the year o . ’ -
At 31 March 2019 . : (1,243)
[Changes during the year : : -
|at 31 March 2020 (1,243)

= In reration to merger of HT Campus undartaking of Firefly a-Ventires Limlted,

o (153,391}

{Rs. in "000)
AR AR
March 3£, 2019
T 23,911

(1,243)
(190,883)

{165,215}

Gansral ragerveg.

(Rs, in'C0Q)

i Total :
(223,750)
82,011
652

204
(190,233)
14,915

{41)]
(175,009}
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Note 12A : Trade payables } {Rs. in '000)
I e O . i s L A At
i March 31,3019

s Marth 3t 2020
[Trade Payables

{i) Total autstaning dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises {refa note 40} - 137
(1) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small entarprises
- payable to related parties (refer hote 264) - 104,650
- Pavable to others L . ) o .. 111,835 91,933
Total: y g g i : R ST 111,035 ; o 196,720
€ : ; 111,035 vl 196,720
Non= Current R R

Note 12B : Other ﬂnancfal Habllitiu . o . . {Rs. in '000)
Parti ; s e SRR B i Ag Bt i As ab :
March 31; 20207 : March 31 2019

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

Employee payables . 1,141 1,246

Security deposit 7.000 -

: Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost il R Wy 1,246
1,246

“CuFrant:;
Non="Cirrent -

Note 13 : Provisions . o {Rs.In '000)
Particufars : ; : e Sl As Ak
March 31; 2029: ¢

81

: March 31 2020
Prowslon or emmovee benefits .
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 24)
Provision for gratuity (refer note 24) B
Total Provisions

{Rs. In '000)
CAS at:io
E : Mafcl’l 3% 2020 : 3 Mar’ch 31,2019
pertaining to 1, 683 1,449

Customers and agents balances (inciudes Rs. Nil thousand (PY - Rs. 235 thous3n

related parties) (rafer ngte 26A) .

Statutory dues 773 740
:Total othier curren Nabilit g1 : H : G BRI e 2189
Current i 2,458 2189




HT Mobile Solutlons Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 15 : Income Tax
The major companents of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are ;

Statement of profit and loss
(Rs. in ‘ODD)
- As at :

As at X
[ March 31,3619

Particulars s R
RN Marchi-ll. 2026

Current incoma tax

Defarred tax charge/(credit) ) ) 5.949 (57,093)
Adjustments in respect of previous year o ) B 1,087 -
Income tax expense réported In the statement of profit and Toss ™ R L S 6,966 i {57,093}
OCI section ;
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during In the vear ended March 31, 2020:
o (INR Lakhs)
'Partlcu!ars 3 Asat e G ASEb
. - RS H Marc!\ 31, 20200 March 31, 2019:;
Tncome tax credit on remessurements of defined benefiz pfans, _— . ”4) .
" Ihcosme tix charged to OCE " i e e s T RIERE § ) SRR SRNITE -
Recuncilia:lou of deferred tax assets et}: s
i RS AT R
RIS : A RS i : S SRNEER N ST March 31 2020¢ . March 31, 2019
Ooenina balanca . ) ) ) ) ) 57,083 -
Tax income/(expense) during the year recoqnised in profit or loss (6,952} 57,093
Clasing balance 50,141 57,093

Reconciiiation of tax expense and the accounting profit multipiied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019:

{Rs. n "000)
Particlars ... . . .. R, . . L . . . .. Asat Asat.
e T T T e T e e I Mareh 31, 20200 .0 March 31, 2019 -
Accounting profit before tax ) ) ) 21,881 24,918
Accounting profit before income tax ) . 21,881 24,918
At India's statutory income tax rate of 26% ) ) ) 5,689 6,479
|Effects of o .
Unrecoanised deferred tax (net for the vear ended 31 March) 260
Deferred tax recognised on Brought, forward losses & Unabsorbed depreciation ~ {45,503)
Deferred tax recognised on temporary differances partaining to previous years - (15,727)
Current year tax loss on which deferred tax is recognised o . - (2,342)
Adiustments in respect of previous year . . 1,017 -
6,966 {57,093)
Deferred tax ralates to the following:
] ] ) {Rs. in '000)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
Temparary differences arising on: .
Unabsorbad brought forward losses . ) 22,774 28,264
Provision for defined benefit obligation | N ) 147 100
Unabsorbed depreciation carried forward . . 17,239 17,239
Impairment of doubtful debts and advances . ) 2,502 2,364
Difference in WDV of tangible and intangible fixed assets as per books of account and tax books 2,119 2,747
Effact of expenditure debited to Statemant of profit and ioss In the current year but allowed for tax 5,362 6,379
Durposes in followina vear
Deferred tax Asset (net) 50,141 57,093
Deductible temparary differences, d tax & , and d tax credits for which no deferred tax asset is recognised In the balance sheet

as on 31 March 2020:

{Rs. in '000)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018

Temporary differences arising on:
Unabsorbed brought forward losses 49,097 93.626
Fair value of investrnent through profit and loss 260
Provision for defined benefit obligation - -
Unabsorbed depreciation carried forward . - -
Impairment of doubtful debts and advances i X R - -
Differerce in WDV of tangible and intangible fixed assets as per books of account and tax books - -

Deferred tax Asset (het) 80,357 93,626




HT Mobile Solutions timited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 16 : Revenue from operations ) B (Rs. in '000)

Pa"ri:icnléi-'s i: Year ended i Year ehded
* March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Sales of semces dl_ 227,548 181,274
-~ Total:: B L 227,548 oy 8L, 2T

jNote 17 : Other income - ) o - o (Rs. in '000)
Parttculars [ R SR Year ended . Year ‘énded
h 20 arch 31; 2019

Interest mcorﬁé ori EiR method

- Bank deposits ) . ] . 2,451 2,157
- Interest on inter corporate deposit o ) . 234 -

- Income tax refund ) - 3,554

Other non - operating income

Unclaimed balances/liabilities written back (net) . 4,042 1,700
Net impairment gair ¢n financial assets L ) o - 475
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment ) . - 2
Foreign exchange fluctuation inceme ) ) ) 412 475
M|scellaneous lncome - 127
- Total : S s T I s S e LB I B4 00
Note 18 : Employee benefits expense ) o (Rs, in '000)

S S arch 31,3020 - March 31; 2619
Salaries, wages and bonus ] ) 8,455 §,249

Contribution to prevident and other funds (refer note 245 323 351
Gratuity expense (refer note 24) ] ) 12t 176

Workmen and staff welfare expenses ) 15 49
i Total::: : fih TR, [

Note 19 : Finance costs
Part u!ars

Year ended. Y r
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

125 o 53
RGN B

Bank charqes ]
Total:: i

Note 20 : Depreci

{ Rs, in "000)
P_'a'il_—tiét._ilérs :

- Year ended|
R i ; March 317 2019
Depreciation on property, plant and equioment (Refer Note 3)

1,182

Amortization of mtangnble assets {Refer Note 4) 290

“Yotal: i VLT

Note 21 ; Other expenses _ . (Rs. in '000}
el : i  Year ended]

S . i b Ma:rch 31, 2020-.-: March 312019
Puwer and fuel o ) 7

Rent ) ] o o - 1,840
Rates and taxes ) ) ] ) 1,183 271
Insurance _ o _ _ 87 30
Repairs and maintenance: . : ) . o
- Plant and machinery - _ _ 354 844
- Building o - o ) - 55
Travelling and conveyance _ o R o 2,235 1,749
Communication costs _ ' o _ o 504 970
tegat and professional fees ) ' o ) ) 1,413 1,255
Payment to auditor {refer details below) o ) ) 900 1,100
Net impairment loss on financiai assets o L ) 534 -
Loss on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment o 133 -
Services for mobile and music content : o . 194,741 142,140
Loss on account of fair value of Investments classified at FVTPL 1,000 -
Miscelia neous expenses 3,235
Totaf: S 153,496
Payment to auditors - (Rs. in '000)

o Y_Ea'l_"él‘flde'di
March 31,2019

DR EHC Marcﬁzﬁi.' 2020
As auditor ¢

- Audit fee ' _ o h B ' 700 800
- Tax audit fee ] 150 200

—Rembursementof e o 50 100
el e e e 90 1,100




HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes to financizal statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 22 : Other Comprehensive Income
The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below :

During the year ended March 31, 2020

(Rs. in '00Q)

Particulars =7 Retaimed .00
: : IRy _ L garnings
Re- measurement gains(losses) on defined benefit plans (55)
Income tax relatmq to |tems that wm not be reclassfed subsequentlv to Drof‘t or Ioss o 14
Total:: R e e R e e T e (YD
During the vear ended March 31, 2019

(Rs in '‘000)
Particularg i o "Retained 5 :Total
LRy SR S SLeR Y Cearnings i n
Re- measurement gains(losses) on defined benefit plans 204 204
Income tax relatm{; to ztems that wil I not be reclassﬁed subsequent!v to Droﬁt or ioss S - -
Total; R T S S D T R e D0 T 204

Note 23 : Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for tr e year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of Equity shares cutstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on
conversion of ali the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

(Rs. i

'000 except earnmgs per share)
eat ended . Year ended|
March 31, 202 Marc 31,_ 2019

Profit/ (loss) attributable to equity holders for basic .ear"n'lngs._ o ] ' 14,915' o 82 {}11
Profit attributable to equity holders adiusted for the effect of dilution ] 14,915 82,011
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (No.) ' ] 35,458,598 35,458,598
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution (No.) 35,458,598 35,458,598

Earning per share
Basic EPS (Rs.) 0.42 2.31
Diluted EPS {Rs.) ) ) 0.42 2.31




HT Mobile Soiutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 24 : Employee Benefits

A. Define Benefit Plan: Gratuity (Rs. in ‘000)

Particulars ;o Year endad .0 Year anded
PACERERIEay SMareh 31770200005 March 3L 2019
Gratuity . ATR 303
Total:; C4FE :

Bt 25
i ATL:

Current:ii
Nof- curren

The Company has a defined banefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of services gets a gratuity on separation at 15 days!
salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of sarvice. The liability is provided as per actuarial vaiuation.

The gratuity plan is governed hy the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is basicaliy a year-on-year cash
accumulation plan in which the interest rate is declared on yearly basis and is guaranteed for a pertod of ong year. The insurance company, as part of the!
palicy rules, makes payment of all gratuity outgoes happening durfng the year (subject to sufficiency of funds under the policy). The policy, thus, mitigates|
the liquidity risk. However, being 2 cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets is shorter compared to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the Company is
exposad to movement in interest rate {in particuiar, the significant fail in interest rates, which shouid result in a increase tn liability without corresponding|
increase in the asset.

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and amounts recagnised In the balance
sheet for the respective plans:

Gratuity Plan
in_th nefit obligation fair v. f plan March

(Rs. in "000)
“. Year ended .

i Year anded
i METen 3120200

5 R : 3 R § Sl March 38, 2019
Opening Balance 303 o
Current Service Cost o ) 97
[nterest Expansa or cost ’ ’ _ 24
Re-measvrement (or Actuerial) (gzin) f loss arsing from:

- change in financial assumptions 4 3
- experiance variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions} (29} (212}
Benefits Paid : <t - (835}
‘fotal . 478 303

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company's plans are shown below:

2 Year énded: :i: Year ended !
lny March 31; 2020 March 31; 2019
Discount Rate 6.85% 7.85%

Particulars::

Salary Growth Rate ) n ) ) 7.50% 7.50%
Withdrawal Rate o -

Up to 30 years o 3.00% 3.00%
31 - 44 years ' 2.00% 2.00%
Above 44 yaars . ) o . ) 1.00% 1.00%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2020 Is as shown below:
{Rs, in '000)
;< Year anded;; . Year ende, b

March'31, 20207 arch 31;'20
47

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)

Impact an deﬁned beneﬁt obllgation dorts ém in '000)
o : i Gy i Year ende s Yearended o

[particulars  March 31,2030 March 3120197

Assumptlon' S : RSN VA E R Increasa HAENIY Decrease B .!ncrea

Discount Rate (-~ f+ i%) 91 74 59

Salary Growth Rate (-/+ 1%) o (74) (30) {48)°

Attrition Rate (-/+ 50%) _ L o 7 7 :

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit chiigaticn as a result of reasonable)
changes in key assumptions cocurring at the end of the reparting perind.

The foliowing represents the maturity profile of the defined benefit plan in future sears:
{Rs. in '000)

Guan Yearended: :
T March 3552020

Partzculars

Match 31, 2019

Upto 1 vaar (next annual renortsng uenod) h 7

From 2 and upto 5 years . 4t

From 6 and upto 10 years . 61

[Bevond 10 years 1,689 . 1,374
Total expacted payimeénts ' SISl M L T e ) 1,457
Average duration of the defined benefit pian obligation Is 18 years (Previous year- 17 years)

B, Defined Contribution Plan

Yoear anded

: : Maich 31; 201
Contribuhon to Provident and Other funds .
Charged to Statement of Profit and Loss B 323 351

C. Leave Encashment (unfunded)
The Company recognises the leave gncashment expenses In the Statement of profit & loss based en actuarial valuation.
The expenses recognised In the statement of profit & loss and the leave encashmaent liability at the beginning and at the end of the year ;
{Rs. in ‘000)
’ - Year ended
i “March 315202077 Maieh 31201870
Llabai;ty at the beginning of the year 81 210
Provided during the year 9 {129)
Liability at the end of the yeas: i 0o L S GO L R i B




HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes to financiat statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 25 : Fair vaiue
Set out beiow, is a comparisan by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the companies financial instruments, ather than those with carrying amounts that are reasonabie
approximations of fair values:

[Rs. in '000)
Particulars:: iy Can g Value ooy D vt Fale value: oo non s Falr value mechanism:,
bty paone +1" March 31; 2020 i Mérch 31, 20195 March' 31, 2020 March 31; 2019 . Higrarchy: :

{Financial assets measured at falr valite through
profit and loss {FVTPL)

Investment in equity instruments and warrants - T s,000 - 7 g,000 o U Level 3
Unquoted (refer note SA)

The management assessed that fair value of ioans given, trade receivables, cash and é5sh ed.fvalents, other banik balancss, other current financial assets, trade payables and
other current financial liabities approximnate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-"erm maturities of these instrurnents. The fair value of the financial assets and
Jabiiities is the amount at which tha nstrument could be exchanged In a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale,

The following metheds and assumptions wera used to estimate the fair values:

- The fair value of the investment in unguoted egquity shares has been estimated using a Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model and/or comparable investment price such as last round
of funding made in the investee Company. The valuation requires managerment to make certain assumptions about the maedel inputs, including forecast cash Nows, discount rate,
credit risk and volatility, The prehabilities of the varlous estimates within the range £an be reasonably assessed and are used in management's estimate of fair value for these
unaucted investments,

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at
31 March 2020 is shown below:

[Parti culars Valuation:;

i Impact of o0 B Impact of Decrease in.
chnlgu

Increase In inputs| Inputs to falr vahid(INR
‘t0 faif valug{INR Lakhs o

Significant unobservablef:

Discounted cash Volatility (+/- 5 /u). - 43.8% 3 {2}

investrnent in equity instruments and warrants Unquoted

at Level 3 fiow/Option Pricing

|rrefer note Dejow} Model
Environment Risk {+/- 15% (4) 4
5%

Reconciliation of fair value measurement of investment in unquoted equity shares measureg at FYTRL (Leve! ) :

As at March 31, 2018 R T
Purchases, S P, . . .. -
Impact of fair value movernent L

mpact o . e ST
As at March 31,2088 e
Purchases e 7.000
Impact of fair value movement o {1,000}
Transfers* A . R -,
As at March 31, 2020 ) . ) 6,000

*During the year an Investment having hook value of TR Nif (previcus year NiI) has been transferred from Level 2 to Level 3
Mote 26: Reiated party transactions

I} List of Related Parties and Relationships:-

Parties having direct or indirect control over the Company |Earthstone Helding (Two) Private Limited (Ultimate controlting party is the Premoter
{Hoiding Company) Group)

The Hindustan Times Limited#

Holding Company of HT Digital Media Holdings Limited HT Media Limited

Holding Company HT Digital Media Haldings Limited

[Fetiow Subsidiaries {(with whom transactions have HT Learning Centers Limited
occurred during the year)

# The Hindustan Timas Limited (HTL} does not hoid any direct investment In the Company, Rowaver, H1L's subsidiary HT Medla Limited holds shares in the Company.

|ii) Transactions with related parties
Refer Note 26A

ilf) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equlvalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions, Qutstanding balances at the year-end are
unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash (other than Inter-corporate Daposit refer note 58).
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Note 264 : Related party transactions
(Rs. in '000)

Fellow Subsidiaries. Total . .

March 31,3020 1._March 31, 3015

. Particulars Haiding Campany of HT Digital Media .
R ) HoldIngs Edmited (50000

Marehy 31 2020 E March 31, 2010 - March 31, 2026 ;. March .31. Wie March 31, 20740:. l March 31, 2019,

Hokding Company

I o | e =] =1 234 ] B | FEEN] -
] -] 1,847 | ] P =] | 1,830
I 844 | £ | H I 244 | -
Relmbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the C-impany 261 631 - - - 6,927 201 7,553
[Raimbursement of expenses incurred on behaif of the parties by EEF - - - - - Ba7
company
- - - 30,000 - 30,000 -
29,207 29,507 321,712 321,712 - - 351,819 351,619
Inter corporate deposit given & Interest accrued on It - - - - 30213 - 30,211 ~
Trade and other receivable 179 - - - 19,733 18,505 19,912 19,505
[Trade payable and other liabilities - 12,359 - - - 494 - 12,863




HT Mohile Solutions Limited
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Note 27: Financial risk management objectivas and policies
The company's principal financiat llabilities comprise trade and othar payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the company's operations. Tha
company's principal financial assets include investments, loans given, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivelents that derive directly from its operations.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financlal instrument wili fluctuate becauge of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of
risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price risk.

The sensitivity analyses in the foliowing sections refate to the position as at March 31, 2020 and March 34, 2019.

The anaiysis exclude the impact of movemnents in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post ratirement obligations and provisions.

The sensitivily of the relevant profit and loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities
held at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019,

(i) Interast rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

{ii} Foreign currency risk
Forgign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or futura cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure
to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates refates primarily to the Campany’s operating activities (when revenua or expensa is dencominated in a foraign currency),

Foereign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange rates, wiv ail other variables held constant, The impact on the Company’s
profit before tax Is due to changes in the fair valua of monetary assets and fiabilities.

(Rs. in '000)

i Particu - Effect on profit before ta

' d. year anded: ar anded A erided
March 31, 2020 March 31; 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31 2019

cﬁanﬁa m. USD rate .
Frade receivables +/(=) 1% +{-} 1% - 148
Unbilled ravenue . . +(-) 1% +£{-) 1% 222 -

(it )Equity price risk

The Company invests in fisted and non-listed equity securities which are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment
securities. The Company manages the eguity price risk through diversification and by placing Iimits on individual and total equity instruments. Reports on the equity partfolio
are submitted to the Company's senlor management on a regular basis, The Company's Investment Committea reviews and approves all eguity investment decisions.

Credit risk

Credit risk I5 the risk that counterparty wilt not meet Its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, feading to a financial loss, The Company is expesed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and foreign
exchange transactions.

Trade receivables and other financial assets
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the raporting date Is the carrying
vatue of each class of financial assets disciosed in Note 7A and Note 5C. The Company does not ho!d collateral as security.

The Company evaluates the roncentration of risk with respect to trade receivables and contract as low, as its customers are focatad in severat Jurisdictions and industries and;
operate in largely Independent markats,

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial Institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department In accordance with the Caompany's pollcy. Investments off
surplus funds are made as per guidelines and within limits approved by Board of Directors. Board of Directors/ Management reviews and update guidelines, time ta time as
per requirement. The guidelines are set to minimize the concentration of risks ard therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failura to makel
payments.

Liguidity risk N
The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning toal

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial Hiabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.
Rs. in '000)

As at March 31, 2020

Trade and other pavables (refer note 124) o v T T 114,035 - 111,035
Other financial liabilities {refer note 128) . 8,141 - 8,141
AsatMarch 34,2000 T .

Trade and other pavabies (refer note 12A} 196,720, - 186,720
Other finandlal liabilities {refer note 128) . . 1,246 . - 1,246
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Note 28 : Segment information

The Company’s operatiens comprise of only one segment i.e. “Rendering of Digita! Se:vices”. The management also reviews and measures the operating results taking the whole
fousiness as one segment and accorgingly make decision about the resources atlocation. in view of the same, separate segment information is not required ta be given as per the
requirement of Ind-AS 108 on "Cperating Segmants”

Information about majer customers: )
There are certain customer: which represent 10% or more of the Company’s total revendye with tatal amounting to Rs. 214,348 thousands and Rs. 167,206 thousands for tha year
ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 respectively.

Note 29: Capital management )
For the purpose of the Company’s capital managemant, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves. The primary objective of the Company's
capital managemant is to maximize the shareholder valie.

The Company manages its capital structure through equity funding and it's own operations. It does not have any debt.

fea changes were made In the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 3%, 2019,

Note 30: Based on the information ilable with the Company, details of dues to Micro and Smal Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 :
(Rs. in '00G}
. March 31, 2019

Particulars:

March 31, 2020

mount ‘ : -

Principal

Interest due tharaon at the and of the accounting year . R R R
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of AR B

Section 18, of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond
tha appointed day during each accounting vear

The amount of Interest due and payable for the period R -
for delay in making payment (which have baen paid

but beyond the appointed day during the year) hut

without adding the interest specified under MSMED

Act, 2006,

The armount of interest accr.aed and remaining vnpaid : W . .
at the end of the accounting year L

The amount of fyrther Interest remaining dueand . - -
payable even in the succeeding years, unti! such date :

when the interest dues as above are actually paid to |

the smail enterprise for the purposs of disallowance as!

a deductible expenditure under Sextion 23 of MSMED

act, 2006, :

Note 31 : Seleme of amalgamation between Firefly e-Ventures Limited {FEVL), HT Digital Madfa Holdings Limited (HTDH}, HT Education Llited {HTEL), HT Learhing
Centers Limited {HTLC), India Education Services Privale Limited (IESPL), Topmovies Entertainment Limited {TMEL) with HT Maobile Solutions Limited {HTMSE)

A scheme of amalgamation u/s 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 which provides for merger of Firefly e-Ventures Limited (FEVL), HT Digita! Media Holdings Limited {HTDMH), HT
Education Limited {HTEL), HT Learning Centers Limited {HTLC), India Education Services Private Limited {IESPL} and Topmovies Entertainment Limited (TMEL} with HT Mobite
Soiutions Limited {HTMS) {"Scheme”), has been spproved by the respective Board of Directors of companies al their meetings held on March 18, 2020,

Pending filing of the Scheme with Hon'ble NCLT, Naw Dethi Bench, impact thereof has not been considered in HTMS's standalane results for FY 19-20,
On effectiveness of the Scheme, the ioan glven by HTMS to HTLC will get eliminated in the books of accounts of HTMS.

Note 32 Disclosure required under sectlon 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

Included in loans and advances, loan to fellow subsidiary the particufars of which are disclosed in below as required by Sec 186(4} of Companies Act 2013:

Secured/:
- Unsecured

Rate of TAterest

HT Learning Centars Limitad To mest the business

"9.60% p.a, compounded - Resayable on demand Unsacyred
(Feflow Subsidiary} annually requirements and gther
general corpurate
purposes,

For further details of loans and advances provided to related parties, refar note 58,

Note 33 Standards Issued but not effective
"Ministry of Corporate Affairs {"MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicabie from April 1,
2020."

Note 34: Management has considerad the possible effects that may resuit from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amount of assets of the Company. In developing
the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties becausa of this pandernic, the Company, as at the date of adaption of thase financial resuits has used intarnal and axternal
sources of infermation. The Company has performead sensitivity analysis on tha assumptions used and based on current estimates expects that the carrying amount of assets wiil be
recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial resiits may differ from that estimated as at the data of adoption of audited finandial statements for the vear ended 31
March 2020,

A

8 “\\
\S‘o 5\
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 35: Previous year figures have been regrouped ang reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year classification.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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